
Ds:CPC/2017/2017-08-15 Minutes.doc   

CITY OF RICHARDSON 
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES – AUGUST 15, 2017 

 
The Richardson City Plan Commission met on August 15, 2017, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the 
Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Janet DePuy, Vice Chair 
  Tom Maxwell, Commissioner  
  Randy Roland, Commissioner 
  Stephen Springs, Commissioner 
  Ken Southard, Alternate 
  Dorthy McKearin, Alternate 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Ron Taylor, Chairman  
  Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner  
  Bill Ferrell, Commissioner   
     
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director – Dev. Svcs. – Planning 
  Chris Shacklett, Sr. Planner 
  Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary 
  Connie Ellwood, Administrative Secretary I 
 
BRIEFING SESSION 
 
Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding 
staff reports, agenda items and rezoning initiatives.  No action was taken. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 
 
MINUTES 
 
1. Approval of minutes of the regular business meeting of August 1, 2017. 

 
Motion: Commissioner Springs made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second by 

Commissioner McKearin.  Motion approved 6-0. 
 

CONSENT ITEMS 
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission and 
will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate 
consideration. 
 

2. Building Elevations – The Shire Retail Building (companion to Item 4): A request for approval 
of building elevations for the construction of a new single-story, 11,201 square foot retail building.  
The property is zoned PD Planned Development and located at 2040 E. President George Bush 
Highway, on the south side of President George Bush Highway, between Shire Boulevard and 
Jupiter Road.   
 
Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to remove Item 2 from the Consent Agenda for 

separate consideration; second by Commissioner Roland.  Motion approved 6-0. 
  

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

August 15, 2017 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2017/2017-08-15  CPCMinutes.doc  2 

SEPARATE CONSIDERATION 
 

2. Building Elevations – The Shire Retail Building (companion to Item 4): A request for approval 
of building elevations for the construction of a new single-story, 11,201 square foot retail building.  
The property is zoned PD Planned Development and located at 2040 E. President George Bush 
Highway, on the south side of President George Bush Highway, between Shire Boulevard and 
Jupiter Road.   
 
Vice Chair DePuy asked if the applicant would step forward to answer questions from the 
Commission that came up during the briefing session. 
 
Mr. Randy Eardley, Weir & Associates, 2201 E. Lamar Boulevard, Arlington, Texas, said he was 
available to answer any questions. 
 
Commissioner Roland noted that in Phase I the buildings faced inward toward the parking lot with 
the back of the buildings facing President George Bush Highway (PGBH) and Infocom Drive, but 
in the current proposal the front of the buildings would be facing PGBH and the back would be 
seen from the existing retail and commercial buildings.  He asked the applicant what enhancements 
could be made to the rear facing elevations. 
 
Mr. Eardley replied that he was the civil engineer on the project and the architect was not present, 
but stated the architectural team had made every effort to meet the requirements of the Planned 
Development.  He added that he would have to communicate the Commission’s comments to the 
architectural team for any changes to the elevations. 
 
Commissioners Maxwell and Roland both felt the proposed rear elevation would detract from the 
existing retail and commercial buildings in Phase I, and Maxwell added that although the back 
elevations on the existing buildings faced the PGBH, there was more of a presence/elevation in 
contrast to the proposed buildings. 
 
Commissioner Springs said he concurred with Commissioners Maxwell and Roland, but asked 
staff how the PD addressed the elevation requirements. 
 
Mr. Shacklett replied there were two requirements listed in the PD: 1) the elevations needed to 
meet the base requirements of the LR-M(2) Local Retail zoning district (85 percent masonry); and 
2) newly constructed buildings shall generally match the color and materials of the existing 
shopping center buildings.  In addition, the PD stated that prior to site plan review and approval by 
staff; the Commission would need to approve building elevations for new construction. 
 
Commissioner Roland said he did not believe that building orientations were discussed when the 
PD was last reviewed. 
 
Mr. Chavez said the concept plan was attached to the PD when approved and showed two 
buildings with parking around the perimeter and the elevations were labeled with the north side, or 
front of the buildings, facing PGBH.  He added that the back of the new buildings would be 
screened by landscape material because of the mechanical equipment located in that area. 

  

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

August 15, 2017 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2017/2017-08-15  CPCMinutes.doc  3 

Commissioner Maxwell stated that if the elevations had been presented at the same time as the 
concept plan the Commission would have had a better idea of what the developer was planning and 
made a decision based on that information.  However, because the information was not presented 
with the concept plan, he viewed it as new information and the Commission had concerns about the 
design. 
 
Commissioner Maxwell asked the applicant if he had any concerns with a continuation of the item 
as opposed to a denial, and Mr. Eardley said he would prefer that the Commission not deny the 
item. 
 
Mr. Shacklett added that it was staff’s recommendation to continue the item indefinitely until the 
architects had a chance to review the information from the Commission. 
 
Commissioner Roland pointed out that some of the existing buildings had architectural elements 
(i.e., spandrel glass, windows, doors, etc.), whether they were real or not that were used to break up 
the blank walls and thought the same treatment could be used on the proposed building. 
 
Commissioner Springs said that he thought the intent of the PD was to provide some homogeneity 
across the development.   
 
Commissioner Southard also believed that changes to the elevations were needed and felt the 
neighboring business owners would appreciate those changes to the design. 
 
Mr. Shacklett stated that if the Commission were considering continuing the item, it would be 
helpful if they gave the applicant some suggestions or direction as to what they were looking for in 
new elevations. 
 
Commissioner Maxwell said that some sort of window treatment (i.e., glass, faux windows, canopy 
treatments, etc.) would be a welcome addition. 
 
Commissioner McKearin thought the bottom line was the Commission was requesting the 
applicant to “dress up” the elevation to blend in with the existing buildings. 
 
Commissioner Springs suggested the Commission might direct the applicant to enhance the 
southern elevation to be more compatible with the north elevation of the building as well as the 
existing buildings in The Shire. 
 
Vice Chair DePuy asked if there might be security problems if service entrance doors were added 
to the southern elevation. 
 
Commissioner Roland suggested the buildings west of Shire Boulevard offered a good example for 
treatments to the southern elevation. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to continue Item 2 indefinitely; second by 

Commissioner Roland.  Motion approved 6-0. 
  

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

August 15, 2017 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2017/2017-08-15  CPCMinutes.doc  4 

VARIANCE 
 
3. Variance 17-03 – Baker Triangle:  Consider and take the necessary action on a request for 

variance from Chapter 21, the Subdivision and Development Code, Article III, Section 21-52(i), 
Off-Street Parking, for a reduced parking ratio for an existing warehouse building.  The subject 
property is located at 1301 Apollo Road, north side of Apollo Road, west of Plano Road.   
 
Mr. Shacklett advised the applicant was requesting a variance to the off-street parking regulations 
for the parking lot of an 82,000 square foot warehouse building, which requires 82 parking spaces 
and the site currently has 107 parking spaces.  However, based on the amount of manufacturing 
and office space the applicant proposed to use in the building, the required number of parking 
spaces should be 161. 
 
In addition, the applicant was also requesting to convert the 40 parking spaces on the north side of 
the building to an outdoor storage area thereby reducing the parking to 67 available spaces and 
leaving a deficit of 94 spaces.  He added that any outdoor storage area would have to be screened 
to the same height as the tallest element per the City’s screening requirements. 
 
Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was asking to leave the office parking ratio the same at 1:250 
square feet, but change the balance of the parking ratio, which would be warehouse and 
manufacturing space, to 1:1800 square feet.  He added the request was based on the applicant’s 
parking demand analysis of 50 parking spaces for office and warehouse employees and 10 spaces 
for visitors leaving 7 vacant parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting the variance would be tied to the applicant and 
if the allocated uses or square footage were changed the parking would have to change. 
 
Commissioner Springs said it appeared the existing fence was chain linked and wanted to know if 
there was any existing screening along that fence line and would the new screening be along the 
property line. 
 
Mr. Shacklett replied the City’s outdoor storage requirements were updated in 2008 and the new 
screening requirements were put in place so any industrial properties that had their outdoor storage 
documented on their site plan could continue “as-is”, but any new outdoor storage would have to 
comply with the new regulations. 
 
Regarding the location of the screening, the applicant would have to screen the outdoor storage 
area to the north, east and west with the building providing the screening on the south. 
 
Commissioner Roland asked to confirm the screening wall could be equal in height to the building, 
and if there were currently gates across the fire lane. 
 
Mr. Shacklett said as long as there were access gates in the fire lane there should not be a problem, 
and the wall could be equal in height to the building. 

  

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

August 15, 2017 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2017/2017-08-15  CPCMinutes.doc  5 

Vice Chair DePuy reminded those in attendance that a public hearing was not required in the case 
of a variance, but invited the applicant to address the Commission if he so desired. 
 
Mr. Keith Giddens, 11567 Hillguard Road, Dallas, Texas, thanked the Commission for hearing the 
request and said he was available for any questions. 
 
Commissioner Roland asked if the existing outdoor storage was what enticed the applicant to 
purchase the site and Mr. Giddens said that it was. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to recommend approval of Variance 17-03 as 

presented; second by Commissioner Southard.  Motion approved 5-1 with 
Commissioner Springs opposed. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
4. Replat – The Shire Addition (companion to Item 2):  Consider and take the necessary action on 

a request for approval of a replat to subdivide Lots 1, 2, and 3, Block A of The Shire Addition, and 
Lot 2, Block A of the One Ninety Business Park No. 2 Addition into five (5) lots to accommodate 
the development of an 11,201-square foot retail building.  The property is located on the south side 
of President George Bush Highway, between Shire Boulevard and Jupiter Road.   
 
Mr. Shacklett stated the requested replat would combine lots for the future development of an 
11,000-square foot retail building on Lot 4, as well as abandoning and dedicating multiple 
easements.  He added the replat complied with the City’s zoning and subdivision regulations. 
 
With no questions for staff, Vice Chair DePuy opened the public hearing. 
 
No comments or questions, in favor or opposed, were received and Vice Chair DePuy closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Springs made a motion to approve Item 4 as presented; second by 

Commissioner McKearin.  Motion approved 6-0. 
 
With no further business before the Commission, Vice Chair DePuy adjourned the regular business 
meeting at 7:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Janet DePuy, Vice Chair 
City Plan Commission APPROVED




